The PRESIDING OFFICER. The Senator from Connecticut.

(The remarks of Mr. BLUMENTHAL pertaining to the introduction of S. 1856 are printed in today's RECORD under "Statements on Introduced Bills and Joint Resolutions.")

Mr. BLUMENTHAL. I suggest the absence of a quorum.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk will call the roll.

The legislative clerk proceeded to call the roll.

Mr. SULLIVAN. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the order for the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

MORNING BUSINESS

Mr. SULLIVAN. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the Senate be in a period of morning business, with Senators permitted to speak therein for up to 10 minutes each.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection. it is so ordered.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 25TH ANNIVERSARY

Mr. SANDERS. Mr. President, July 26, 2015, marks the 25th anniversary of the enactment of the Americans with Disabilities Act. I would like to take a moment to discuss the importance of this landmark legislation and to highlight the strides we have made in making our communities more inclusive.

It is estimated that nearly one in five Americans have a disability. Upon its passage, the ADA was hailed as the world's first comprehensive declaration of equality for people with disabilities. It established a clear national mandate that we as a nation have a moral responsibility to ensure that all Americans have access to the programs and the support needed to contribute to society, live with dignity, and achieve a high quality of life. Over the past 25 years, the ADA has expanded opportunities for Americans with disabilities by reducing barriers and changing perceptions and increasing full participation in all areas of public life, including the workforce, education, and transportation. Because of this legislation, we have made tremendous progress in eliminating barriers to everyday life for Americans living with disabilities.

Unfortunately, even after 25 years, we still live in a world where people with disabilities have fewer work opportunities and higher rates of unemployment than people without disabilities. We still have more work to do to ensure that the basic civil rights of persons with disabilities are fully protected and respected, but the ADA was an important step forward in achieving these goals.

Through passage of the ADA, we have made more progress on this issue than anyone ever dreamed of 25 years ago. We should be proud of these efforts to make our communities more inclusive, and we should honor this important anniversary by continuing our efforts to ensure that no person with a disability experiences prejudice, discrimination, or barriers to living full and productive lives.

REMEMBERING TROY ELAM

Mr. PORTMAN. Mr. President, I wish to honor the life of Troy B. Elam, of Middletown, OH, and to recognize his legacy and service to our Nation.

Troy was born in Knox County, KY, on May 31, 1926. He was the son of John Nathan Elam and Alice (Clouse) Elam and passed away on July 17, 2015.

Part of our "greatest generation," Troy Elam served his country valiantly in WWII. A decorated WWII combat veteran, Troy Elam was awarded two Bronze Stars for service on the front lines as part of a U.S. Army machine gun squad in the Battle of the Bulge and the Battle of Remagen. His unit liberated a Nazi concentration camp and Troy was proud to be part of the honor guard 21-gun salute for a Dutch soldier who died after being liberated.

In addition to being a WWII veteran, he was a longtime and dedicated mechanic at the Portman Equipment Company. Troy raised his family in Middletown, OH, and is survived by his wife of 71 years, Dorothy Mae (Helton) Elam, his children Diane McCowan, Troy D. Elam, Don Elam, and Jerry Elam, 9 grandchildren, and 14 greatgrandchildren.

Troy Elam was an American hero. He will be missed, but his legacy will not be forgotten.

ADDITIONAL STATEMENTS

SAMUEL SHAPIRO & COMPANY 100TH ANNIVERSARY

• Mr. CARDIN. Mr. President, I wish to pay tribute to Samuel Shapiro & Company, a Baltimore-based customs broker and freight forwarder, on the occasion of the firm's 100th anniversary. Founded by Samuel Shapiro in 1915, Shapiro & Co. has since become one of our country's leaders in domestic and international shipping, with locations across the eastern seaboard.

From navigating the intricacies of international cargo management to providing client consultation on import and export compliance, Shapiro & Co. has distinguished itself as a center of innovation, extensive business acumen, and creativity. Strong family and community ties lie at the real heart of the company, which has been familyowned since its founding.

Samuel Shapiro, a son of Russian immigrants, founded Samuel Shapiro & Company at age 20 just as our Nation was beginning to emerge onto the global stage, economically, politically, and socially. Our European allies were in the midst of war, driving the need for American-made goods ever higher. Des-

ignated by the U.S. Government as the Port of Baltimore's distribution broker for grain exports, Shapiro & Co., though small, began to build a reputation for effectiveness and reliability among European businesses during the postwar reconstruction period. Throughout the 1920s, 1930s, and 1940s, Shapiro & Co. continued to expand, helping to cement the city of Baltimore as one of the Nation's premier commercial ports.

In the 1950s, Shapiro & Co., driven by the strong leadership of Samuel and his son Sigmund, emerged as an influential force in lobbying for the establishment of the Maryland Port Authority in 1956 and in advocating for the growth of the port, supporting the construction of the Dundalk Marine Terminal in the late 1950s and early 1960s. Shapiro & Co. continued to serve as an economic force through some of Baltimore's most difficult times, throughout the eras of upheaval and relocation in the 1960s and 1970s.

After a lifetime of devotion to the city of Baltimore, Samuel Shapiro passed away at the age of 92 in the mid-1980s. Today, the company is headed by president and CEO Marjorie Shapiro, Samuel's granddaughter. Shapiro, as the company is known today, has evolved from a one-room office with a \$5 roll-top desk to a well-respected and highly regarded industry leader and Baltimore institution. The Port of Baltimore is more vibrant than ever, due in part to the stewardship of Shapiro & Co. In 2014, the Port brought in 29.5 million tons of foreign exports at a value of \$52.5 billion. I ask my colleagues to join me in celebrating the legacy of this outstanding company. which embodies the values that we honor most as Americans: hard work, a commitment to family, and tireless dedication.

TRIBUTE TO LESLEY ROBINSON

• Mr. DAINES. Mr. President, I wish to recognize Lesley Robinson, the newly elected member of the Executive Committee of the National Association of Counties, NACo, as Montanan of the Week. Mrs. Robinson was recognized during NACo's 80th Annual Conference and will now act as the regional representative for the western region of the United States. Mrs. Robinson will also serve as vice chair of NACo's Public Lands Steering Committee, which oversees all matters pertaining to federally-owned public lands.

As a rancher from Dodson, MT, Mrs. Robinson understands the western lifestyle and hopes to protect the interests of Montana and other western counties while working on the executive committee. Mrs. Robinson wants to highlight issues regarding resource management, endangered species protection, and wildfire prevention. Beyond her work at NACo, Mrs. Rob-

Beyond her work at NACo, Mrs. Robinson is also an active member of her community. She works with local organizations like the Bear Paw Development Corporation, Phillco Economic Council, Phillips Transit Authority and the Joint Powers Trust, and the Montana Stockgrowers Association. I am proud to see Montana being represented by women like Mrs. Robinson, who have dedicated their lives to improving the betterment of Montana and the west for all. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO CARA BECK

• Mr. ROUNDS. Mr. President, today I recognize Cara Beck, an intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work she has done for me, my staff, and the State of South Dakota.

Cara is a graduate of Mitchell High School in Mitchell, SD. Currently, she is attending Augustana College, where she is majoring in history and political science. She is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of her internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Cara for all of the fine work she has done and wish her continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO LEAH GOSCH

• Mr. ROUNDS. Mr. President, today I recognize Leah Gosch, an intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work she has done for me, my staff, and the State of South Dakota.

Leah is a graduate of Great Plains Lutheran High School and is from Rapid City, SD. Currently, she is attending South Dakota State University, where she is majoring in electrical engineering. She is smart, hardworking, and has been an incredible asset to our office.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Leah for all of the fine work she has done and wish her continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO DUSTIN SANTJER

• Mr. ROUNDS. Mr. President, today I recognize Dustin Santjer, an intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the State of South Dakota.

Dustin is a graduate of Central High School in Aberdeen, SD. Currently, he is attending the University of South Dakota, where he is majoring in finance and political science. He is intelligent, hardworking, and has truly made the most of his internship here.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Dustin for all of the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO BRANDON VANBEEK

• Mr. ROUNDS. Mr. President, today I recognize Brandon VanBeek, an intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the State of South Dakota.

Brandon is from Beresford, SD and is a graduate of the Netherlands Reformed Christian School. Currently, he is attending the University of South Dakota, where he is majoring in political science. He is a hard worker who has been dedicated to getting the most out of his internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Brandon for all of the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO JULIA ALVAREZ HIERRO

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Julia Alvarez Hierro, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work she has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Julia is a student at the Universidad Pontificia de Comillas, where she is double majoring in international relations and translating and interpreting. She is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of her internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Julia for all the fine work she has done and wish her continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO GABRIELLE GERECHT

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Gabrielle Gerecht, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work she has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Gabrielle is a student at McGill University where she is majoring in international development. She is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of her internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Gabrielle for all the fine work she has done and wish her continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO RYAN HOGAN

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Ryan Hogan, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Ryan is a student at Ohio State University where he is majoring in psychology. He is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of his internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Ryan for all the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come.

TRIBUTE TO CALEB ORR

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Caleb Orr, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Caleb is a rising senior at Abilene Christian University, where he is majoring in political science and sociology. He is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of his internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Caleb for all the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO WILL PIERESON

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Will Piereson, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Will is a student at Harvard Law School where he is studying national security and cyber law. He is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of his internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Will for all the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO DANIELA RAMIREZ

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Daniela Ramirez, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work she has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Daniela is a student at the University of Tampa, where she is majoring in both criminology and government and world affairs. She is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of her internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Daniela for all the fine work she has done and wish her continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO ANDREW RIDDAUGH

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Andrew Riddaugh, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.

Andrew is a student at Florida State University, where he is majoring in political science. He is a dedicated and diligent worker who has been devoted to getting the most out of his internship experience.

I extend my sincere thanks and appreciation to Andrew for all the fine work he has done and wish him continued success in the years to come. \bullet

TRIBUTE TO KEVIN RUBIO

• Mr. RUBIO. Mr. President, today I recognize Kevin Rubio, a 2015 summer intern in my Washington, DC, office, for all of the hard work he has done for me, my staff, and the people of the State of Florida.